
 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: June 30, 2014 

To: Portland Design Commission 

From:  Staci Monroe, City Planner 
503-823-0624, Staci.Monroe@portlandoregon.gov 
 

Re: July 10, 2014 Design Commission  
LU 14-117884 DZM – Block 37 

 
Attached is a drawing set for revisions made to Block 37 since the first Type III hearing on May 15, 
2014.  After the hearing, I provided the applicant a summary of Commission’s feedback, a copy of which 
has been included in the applicant’s submittal and attached to this memo.  Revisions to the project 
have been made in response to Commission’s concerns, however, Staff feels that some of items require 
further consideration and therefore a Staff Report has not been prepared.  The remaining items are as 
follows:  

1. Transition along the Greenway – Revisions have been made that provide more room and a better 
transition to the greenway trail in response to the Commission’s comments.  The building has been 
setback an additional 1’-0”, retail space has been added with an outdoor patio and minor revisions 
made to the landscaping.  At its narrowest point, the building wall is now setback 10’-0” from the 
east property line with the retail patio approximately 8’-5” from, and 5’-0” above, the actual bike 
path.  Is the additional setback and retail component enough to improve the transition at this pinch 
point where the trail curves back towards the property? In order to ensure success of a corner retail 
space at the greenway, has the retail component been fully realized and differentiated in this new 
design with regard to depth and design of the patio, adjacent landscape design, and the tenant 
entry, storefront, canopies and signage? 

• Ground Floor Plan – C.8 
• Section & Setbacks at Greenway – C.33 
• Perspective of NE corner – C.20 & C.21 
• Landscape Plan – L.8 

2. Lane Projection – The Commission indicated at the hearing that if the buildings to the west already 
project into the 30’-0” Lane setback then they may consider a similar projection for Block 37.  The 
applicant has provided this information that shows the Ardea and Riva both include elements 
(balconies and garage vent screens) that project into Lane, 4’-0” and 5’-0” respectively.  Although 
these two precedent buildings include minor building elements that project more than Block 37 
(which is now proposed to project 3'-6" into the setback), these existing situations present a different 
condition.  The projections into the setback at the Ardea and Riva are smaller and lighter elements 
hung on a building wall; this is different than Block 37's projections, which are 5-story building 
facade planes.   Given this new information, is the projection into Lane approvable as proposed? 
(Note, Staff researched the Ardea and Riva final land use decisions and unfortunately neither made 
mention of the Lane setback projections, though Modifications should have been processed). 

• Lane Street Setbacks – C.4 
• Lane Street Rendering – C.22 

3. Coherency and Composition – Changes include a more consistent use of the accent material and 
unifying the pieces within the brick bays with a single color.  The major project revision to reduce 
the building height, and thus eliminate the need for the modification, has occurred along the Gaines 
Street façade.  The change reflects the Commission’s preference to step back the upper floors (by 
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20’-0”), which was presented at the hearing.  Projecting bays have been added to provide some relief 
along this long elevation.  This change has affected the large frame parti of the original concept, 
specifically on the north and west facades.  In the prior design, the brick extended up from the base 
on both of these facades separating the frames and providing a more coherent design of the base.  
Have these changes improved the coherency and strengthened building's composition?  And, with 
these changes is the brick resolved in its applications at the east and south facades? 

• North and West Facade Renderings – C.17, C.19 & C.23 
• South & East Façade Renderings – C.21 & C.22 

4. Garage Entry location – The Commission expressed support for the relocation of the garage to the 
west in alignment with the opposing Atwater garage.  This was a request in several of the public 
comments received, which the applicant was amenable to.  The applicant has chosen to not relocate 
the garage and so Staff feels the proposed location should be discussed by the Commission.  PBOT 
has no objections to the garage in either location, so long as it is either aligned the Atwater garage or 
far enough to the east to not create a conflict.   PBOT has noted that if aligned with the Atwater 
garage, delays in pedestrian movement may occur while cars are waiting to exit and on-street 
parking would be reduced by at least one space.   

• Ground Floor Plan – C.8 

• North Building Elevation – C.13 

Portland Parks and Recreation (PPR) and Bureau of Environmental Services (BES) have reviewed the 
changes and have no objections.  PPR has indicated the concept proposed is acceptable, however, the 
improvements that extend into public property will be reviewed in detail under the Non-Park Use Permit 
(NPUP) process.  PPR also still recommends a CPTED (Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design) 
review given the project’s proximity to a major regional trail facility. 
 
Staff has received several comments from the public on the revised proposal, which have been attached 
to the memo.  The majority of the original concerns are restated while comments regarding the changes 
have been added. 
 
As you know, the review criteria are Central City Fundamental Design Guidelines, South Waterfront 
Design Guidelines and the South Waterfront Greenway Design Guidelines.   
 
Please contact me with any questions or concerns at (503) 823-0624. 
 
 
Attachments:     May 15th Design Review Hearing Comments 
      Public Comment from Block 37 Citizens Committee 
      Public Comment from South Waterfront Community Association 
      Public Comment from South Portland Neighborhood Association Land Use Committee 
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